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Section 1 – Introduction to Tender for Staff Medical Insurance.

1.1 Introduction to Concern
Concern Worldwide is a non-governmental, international, humanitarian agency that was founded in 1968. The organisation is devoted to the relief, assistance and advancement of people in greatest need in less developed areas of the world. Concern Worldwide’s vision is a world where people no longer live in extreme poverty, fear or oppression; a world where every person has access to a decent standard of living and the opportunities and choices basic to enjoying a long, healthy and creative life; a world where every person is treated with dignity and respect; a world where there is peace and solidarity among people. The organisation’s headquarters are in Dublin, Ireland.
Concern’s policy is to work in countries in the bottom 40 as per the Human Development Index (HDI), though emergency interventions may take place in countries outside this group of countries. We are working in countries in Africa, Asia and Haiti in the Caribbean.
1.1.1	Concern Worldwide South Sudan
[bookmark: _Toc134504117][bookmark: _Toc208304504]Concern has been working in South Sudan since 1985, initially focusing on emergency response in the Upper Nile area. Between 1994 and 1998 Concern expanded the emergency response to Kajo Keji, Eastern Equatoria. Then further in 1998 to Northern Bahr el Ghazal region, Nuba Mountains and the Unity Region.
 
Currently Concern operates in Unity, NBeG, Central Equatorial(Juba and Kajokeji) states

Our Head Office is located in Juba; we have programme offices in Nyamlel in Aweil West,  and Panthou in Aweil South, Bentiu IDP camp and Beyond Bentiu Response and lastly in KajoKeji.

1.2 Background to Tendering for Staff Medical Insurance. 
Concern Worldwide currently has an overall total population of 418 national staff working in South Sudan. Of this each of the 418 national staff member, along with their dependents are in categories of M+0 up to M+3, to be covered by medical insurance. We are now tendering to identify medical insurance providers in South Sudan who will be able to continue meeting our requirements on a 12 months basis, with option to renew
Concern Worldwide will receive the bids at the Concern Office in Juba and after tender evaluation; the successful bidder will be selected to provide insurance from 1st February 2023.

1.3 Tendering Process
A Tender advert appeared in The Juba Monitor newspaper on Monday 12 December 2022, and placed in the IAPG and HLA websites (www.iapg.org.uk and www.humanitarianlogistics.org) advertising for “Provision of Staff Medical Insurance – South Sudan”.  

For queries, please contact: Email:	tenders.southsudan@concern.net

1.3.1	Application Process
Tender forms are available by 
· Requesting Tender dossier from Concern Worldwide by requesting a softcopy by emailing tenders.southsudan@concern.net from 13 December 2022.

1.3.2 Submission of Bids
Bid must be submitted in a sealed envelope. The envelope must state “Tender for Staff Medical Insurance”. The envelope should be addressed to:

Country Director
Concern Worldwide South Sudan
Airport Road
Juba, South Sudan

Envelopes may be submitted to Concern Worldwide, Airport Road, Juba latest by 29 December, 2022 14:00 hours South Sudan time.

Any bid submitted after the deadline, will not be accepted. Bids will be opened at Concern Worldwide Office, Juba, on 29 December 2023 at 14:30 Hours South Sudan time, in the presence of only the Tender Committee in line with COVID-19 restrictions.

Portion of Bids, electronic bids, physical bids which are not received by the closing date, will be treated as late bids and will not be included in the evaluation. If the envelope is not sealed and not marked as instructed above, Concern will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the bid. A bid opened prematurely will be rejected.

1.3.3 Supporting Documentation to be submitted with each Bid
Copies of the following supporting documentation must be submitted with each Bid:
· Certificate of incorporation
· Operations License
· Chamber of Commerce, Industry & Agriculture Membership Certificate
· Certification of Registration with the Insurance Regulatory Authority
· Certificate of registration with Bank of South Sudan
· Tax Identification Number (TIN)
· Tax Clearance Certificate
· Company Profile
· Financial statements and audits for 2020 or 20221.
· Details of medical facilities at requested locations
· Copy of standard contract
· Other relevant licenses/certificates
· Certificate/reference information of previous undertakings of contracts with NGO/UN agencies

1.3.4 Evaluation of Bids
All valid bids will be evaluated by a Tender Committee of Concern South Sudan who will assess the bids based on administrative, technical and financial criteria, using the information provided in your submission. Following this, short-listed bidders will take part in a further evaluation, which will involve a follow up meetings between the bidder and the Tender Committee where necessary.  Concern reserves the right to request proof of your past work experience and to visit the premises of bidders, if this is deemed necessary to complete the evaluation.




Section 2 – Medical Insurance Information Form

1. Business Profile

	Name of Company:
	

	Physical Address:
	

	Telephone Number:
	

	Email, if applicable:
	

	Contact Name, Telephone Number and Title
	

	Type of business (plc/limited company/partnership etc…)
	

	Years in operation:
	

	Provide information on any relationships that you have with Concern staff? – Friends/family/ business partners etc.
	



2. Bank Details:

	Bank Name:
	

	Bank Address:
	

	Bank Account Name:


	

	Bank Account Number:
	

	How long has this Account been open?
	






3. Payment Terms

	Payment for Staff Medical Insurance (up to 418 employees) to be made Monthly/quarterly/annually by Concern






	

	Payment Method (electronic/Cheque)
	



4. Employee Information

	Number of Full-time Employees:
	

	% of Male .v. Female Employees:
	

	Number of children working for you (i.e. under 18); please provide details of the work that they carry out:
	

	What is the average pay for your staff for one day’s work:
	

	What is the minimum pay for your staff for one day’s work:
	

	What is the average number of hours that your employees work per week:
	

	Do your staff get annual leave; if so how many days per year:
	



5. Accessing services 

	Outline how members can access services e.g. SMART card?
Confirm any costs our staff will incur i.e. on joining the scheme, replacement

	

	How do members access services if they do not have their card?


	








6. Reporting 

	Give details of what reports you provide to Concern, with details of:
· Report name
· Frequency
· Content of the report

	



7. Relationship Management

	Do you provide a dedicated staff member(s) to manage the relationship between you and Concern?  If so, provide details of the role of the person.

	

	Do you provide 24 hour, 365 days per year contact details, for Concern use in the event of an emergency?
	

	What support do you provide to a member who is medevac’d to Juba for treatment:
· On arrival in Juba
· While in hospital
· After discharge but before returning to their base station
	

	What support do you provide to Concern in managing the care of patients once they are admitted to hospital in:
· Aweil
· Bentiu
· Juba
· Kajo Keji
· Uganda
· Kenya
· Republic of Sudan
· Ethiopia
	

	What support do you provide in the event of the death of a staff member, while the staff member is receiving medical treatment in hospital?





	

	What information, training can you provide for members in relation to their health, avoiding preventable diseases etc.?
	

	What mechanisms do you use to get feedback from members on the scheme?
	




8. Existing Members – Eligibility 

	Criteria for who is eligible to be a new member? If yes, please outline the criteria. 

Also include if there are requirements for a medical examination before accepting a new member.

	

	Criteria for who is eligible to become dependents. If yes, please outline the criteria. 

Also include if there are certain criteria that require a medical examination before accepting a dependent as a new member.

	

	Possible to change dependents during membership year? If yes, what notification period is require and how often?

	

	Outline documents required to register member.


	

	Time period for issuing membership card or other verification document on accepting a member?

	



9. Existing Member – Exclusion


	Exclusion of certain cover for new member e.g. do you exclude pre-existing medical conditions?


	

	Exclusion of certain cover for dependents e.g. do you exclude pre-existing medical conditions?

	

	Outline general exclusions for members wishing to receive treatment  (e.g. context/condition)
 
	





10. Existing Members – Receiving Treatment

	Where insured is covered in USD but the service provider requires SSP, on what basis does the insurer calculate the rate?

	





11. Existing Members Overseas Insurance

	Is the member covered outside of South Sudan? If yes, please attach list of countries.

	

	Member identification to receive treatment from service provider outside South Sudan? (e.g. card)

	

	Outline method for member to make claim for any medical expenses incurred outside of South Sudan.

	

	Are the dependents of a member covered if living outside of South Sudan?

	


 
12. Existing Member Other cover

	Funeral Expense Cover?

	

	Overseas Referral for members when treatment is unavailable in South Sudan? If yes, list the countries insured can be referred to.

	

	Do you cover flight cost for referral to other countries?

	

	Number of flights covered per year for overseas referrals (if applicable) from:
	Bentiu; Aweil; Kajo Keji; Juba 

	

	Do you cover flight cost in country where referred by insurance service provider when appropriate medical care cannot be provided?

	

	Location(s) where referrals can be sent to in-country

	




	[bookmark: _GoBack]Number of flights covered per year for in-country referrals travelling from:
	Bentiu; Aweil; Kajo Keji
	
	

	Do you provide an option for cover for vaccinations?  If so, for which vaccinations and what is the cover provided and limit?

If vaccinations are not provided or if the types of vaccinations are limited under the insurance cover, can a stand-alone vaccination fund be provided at organisation level through which our staff may access vaccinations.

	

	Do you offer road evacuation in the event of a medical emergency and where security permits?

	

	What is entry age per member and per dependent.

	

	What is the upper age limit for which you will provide cover per member and per dependent?

	

	Cover extension – are there any restrictions on who can be included as a dependent?
	



13. Dental Cover

	Do you offer Dental Cover as a minimum in your insurance policy?

	

	If yes, please outline what is covered and limit per member e.g. Dental Consultation & Gum Diseases
Extractions and fillings
Dental X-rays & Prescriptions
Scaling and polishing
Root canals
	

	Confirm that dental is a stand-alone i.e. is not part of the overall member limit

	

	Provide details of exclusions
	



14. Optical Cover

	Do you offer Optical Cover as a minimum in your insurance policy?

	

	If yes, please outline what is covered and limit per member e.g. Outpatient ophthalmologists’ expenses
Lenses and contact lenses
Lenses repair 
Correction of refractive errors
Frames (one pair every 1years)
Consultation
	

	Confirm that optical is a stand-alone i.e. is not part of the overall member limit

	

	Provide procedure e.g. pre-authorization

	

	Provide exclusions
	




15. Inpatient Cover Benefits
Please specify the minimum covered in the insurance package. Please specify other cover as a minimum in the space provided, and including any requirement for pre-authorization. 
	Area
	Covered & Details if Yes
	Limit USD/SSP (if applicable)

	Bed 
	
	

	Doctor’s fees
	
	

	ICU/HDU and Theatre 
	
	

	Diagnostic
	
	

	Physiotherapy
	
	

	Prescription drugs 
	
	

	Accident cover 
	
	

	Post-hospitalization
	
	

	Pre-existing / chronic conditions 
	
	

	Inpatient Dental 
	
	

	maxillofacial 
	
	

	Maternity/Childbirth 
	
	

	Acute ailments
	
	

	Cesarean sections, and number allowed
	
	

	Lodger fees 
	
	

	Psychiatry and psychotherapy
	
	

	Oncology/Cancer 
	
	

	Renal Dialysis 
	
	

	Day-care surgery 
	
	

	X-ray, CT, MRI and PET 
	
	

	Reconstructive surgery 
	
	

	Dental and optical /Ophthalmology
	
	

	Overseas referral 
	
	

	Congenital and genetic conditions 
	
	

	Road ambulance 
	
	

	Funeral Expenses 
	
	

	Air Tickets 
	
	

	Any other Benefit – add rows where necessary
	
	



16. Outpatient Cover 

Please specify the minimum covered in an insurance package. Also specify other cover in the space provided including any requirement for pre-authorization

	Area
	Covered and details if Yes
	Limit in USD/SSP where applicable 

	Consultation 
	
	

	Prescription 
	
	

	Diagnostic tests 
	
	

	Physiotherapy 
	
	

	Pre-existing / chronic conditions 
	
	

	General health check-ups
	
	

	vaccinations
	
	

	HIV/AIDS 
	
	

	Antenatal & Post-natal services
	
	

	Psychiatry and psychotherapy 
	
	

	Oncology/Cancer
	
	

	CT, MRI, Angiography and PET scans 
	
	

	Congenital and genetic conditions defects 
	
	

	Any other benefit – add rows where necessary.
	
	

	
	
	



17. Group Buffer Cover – for members who have fully utilised their limits
	Do you provide Group Buffer Cover and, if so, how much cover do you provide?

	

	Confirm that GBC is for overall outpatient, inpatient and all other sub limits.

	

	Confirm that Group buffer is administrator is Concern Worldwide.

	


18. Adding New Members
	Additional cost for new members once the number of members exceed what was included in the quote? Please outline price/calculation formula.

	

	Period of notification required for adding new members
	

	Frequency and circumstances of accepting new members when cover is running.

	

	Period of notification from insurance provider for acknowledging new members?

	

	Time period for issuing of eligibility documents to new members?

	


19. Exiting Member

	Period of notification required for exiting members?

	

	Period for insurance provider to action removal of exiting members

	

	Reimbursement to Concern if member exits insurance before end of 12 months?  

	

	Basis for calculation of reimbursement to Concern if member leaves before 12 months?

	




20. Provide information, conditions, timelines etc. for the following

	Follow up meetings
	

	Preauthorization
	

	Claims settlement
	

	Utilization Reports
	

	Medical cards
	

	Queries
	

	Medical evacuation/referrals 
	

	Policy Documents
	

	Premium payments terms
	

	Debiting/invoicing terms 
	

	Credit payment  
	

	Any other – add rows where necessary.
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17.  Details of facilities where you currently provide cover, by type of facility, by location: Please complete in the table below, or attach a supporting document/list of service provider’s panel, which includes the following information:

	Location
	Facility
	Service provided

	Aweil town


	
	

	Nyamlel


	
	

	Malek Alel (Aweil south) 


	
	

	Wau



	
	

	Bentiu IDP



	
	

	Rubkona town



	
	

	Leer town


	
	

	Juba city


	
	

	Kajo Keji


	
	



18.  Reference of providing similar services in the past:
Please complete the table below using the format to summarise the major relevant items/services/works carried out in the course of the past 3 years by your company, by location.  Please provide proof e.g. copy of LPO/Contract; please also provide details on additional pages, if needed.

	Location
	International NGO/UN Organisation
	Contact name and phone number

	Aweil town
	
	

	Nyamlel
	
	

	Malek Alel (Aweil south) 
	
	

	Wau
	
	

	Bentiu PoC
	
	

	Rubkona town
	
	

	Leer town
	
	

	Juba city
	
	

	Kajo Keji
	
	



Previous experience with Concern:
	Name of contact person in Concern
	Details of previous experience
	Date of last contract/LPO

	

	
	

	

	
	

	

	
	

	

	
	

	

	
	

	

	
	

	

	
	




Section 3 – Concern Worldwide General Terms and Conditions


CONCERN WORLDWIDE
PURCHASING TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the term “Client” refers to Concern Worldwide. The term “Service Provider” refers to the entity named on the order and contracting with the Client.  The term “Contract” can be taken to mean either (a) the purchase order or (b) the supply agreement, whichever is in place. 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1) Price: The prices stated on the order shall be held firm for the period of 3 months unless specifically stated otherwise

2) Source of Instructions: The Service Provider shall not seek nor accept instructions from any source external to Concern Worldwide in relation to the performance of the contract.

3) Assignment: The Service Provider shall not assign, transfer, sublet or subcontract the contract or any part thereof without the prior written consent of the Client.

4) Corruption: The Service Provider shall not give, nor offer to give, anyone employed by the Client an inducement or gift that could be perceived by others to be a bribe. The Service Provider agrees that a breach of this provision may lead to an immediate end to business relationships and termination of existing contracts.

5) Confidentiality : All data, including but not limited to, maps, drawings, photographs, estimates, plans, reports and budgets that has been compiled by or received by the Service Provider under the contract shall be the property of Concern Worldwide and shall be treated as confidential. All such data should be delivered to the authorized officials representing the Client upon request.

5.1) The Service Provider may not communicate at any time to any other person, government or authority external to Concern Worldwide, any information that has been compiled through association with Concern Worldwide which has not been made public except with written authorisation from the Client. These obligations do not lapse upon termination of the contract.

6) Use of Emblem or Name: Unless otherwise agreed in writing; the Service Provider shall not advertise nor make public the fact that it is supplying goods or services to the Client, nor shall the Service Provider in any way whatsoever use the name or emblem of Concern Worldwide in connection with its business or otherwise.

7) Observance of Law: The Service Provider shall comply with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations bearing upon the performance of its obligations under the terms of the contract.

8) Force Majeure: The meaning of the term can be taken to mean acts of God, war (declared or not), invasion, revolution, insurrection or acts similar in nature or force.

8.1) In the event of and as soon as possible after the occurrence of any cause deemed force majeure, the Service Provider must inform the Client of the full particulars in writing. If the Service Provider is rendered unable either in part or in whole to perform its obligations then the Client shall take such action as it considers, in its sole discretion, to be appropriate or necessary in the circumstances.

8.2) If the Service Provider is permanently rendered incapable in whole or part by reason of force majeure to complete its obligations and responsibilities under the contract then the Client will have the right to suspend or terminate the contract on the same terms and conditions laid out in section 9, Cancellation.

9) Cancellation: The Client reserves the right to cancel the contract should it suspend its activities or through changes to its mandate by virtue of the Executive Council of Concern Worldwide and/or lack of funding.  In such a case the Service Provider shall be reimbursed by Concern Worldwide for all reasonable costs incurred by the Service Provider, including all materials satisfactorily delivered and confirming to specification and terms of the contract, prior to receipt of the termination notice.

9.1) Should the Service Provider encounter solvency problems including, but not limited to, bankruptcy, liquidation, receivership and similar, the Client reserves the right to terminate the contract immediately without prejudice to any other right or remedy it may have under the terms of these conditions.

10) Warranty: The Service Provide shall provide the Client with all manufacturers’ warranties.  The Service Provider warrants that all goes supplied in relation to the contract meets specification, is defect free and is fit for the purpose of the intended use.  If, during the warranty period, the goods are found to be defective or non-conforming to specification, the Service Provider shall promptly rectify the defect.  If the defect is permanent then at the choice of the Client the Service Provider will either replace the item at their cost or reimburse the Client.

11) Inspection and Test: The Service Provide must inspect the goods prior to dispatch to ensure conformance to specification and/or any other provisions of the contract.  The Client reserves the right to inspect the goods for compliance with specifications and provisions of the contract.  If, in the Clients’ opinion, the goods and/or services do not comply with the specification, the Client will inform the Service Provider in writing.  In such a case the Service Provider shall take the necessary action to ensure compliance, liability for any additional cost incurred in rectifying compliance will rest with the Service Provider.

12) Changes: The Client reserves the right to make reasonable changes at any time to the specification, drawings, plans, quantity, packing instructions, destination or delivery instruction.  If any such change affects the price of the goods or performance of service the Service Provider and Client may negotiate an equitable adjustment to the contract, provided that the Service Provider claims for adjustments in writing to the Client within 30 days from being notified of any change.

13) Export Licence: If an export license or licenses are required for the goods, the Service Provider has the responsibility to obtain that license or licenses.

14) Payment Terms: Unless otherwise agree, payment terms will be net 30 days from receipt of a correctly prepared invoice.

11) Ethics: The Conduct to which Concern expects all of its Service Providers to respect is as follows:  

1. Service Providers must adhere to International Labour Organisation (ILO) labour conventions, particularly international labour standards, social protection and work opportunities for all
1. Employment is freely chosen.
1. The rights of staff to freedom of association and to collective bargaining are respected.
1. Working conditions are safe and hygienic.
1. No exploitation of children is tolerated. 
1. Wages paid are adequate to cover the cost of a reasonable living.
1. Working hours are not excessive.
1. No discrimination is practiced.
1. Regular employment is provided.
1. No harsh or inhumane treatment of staff is tolerated.
1. Local labour laws are complied with.
1. Social rights are respected.

Additionally, by acceptance by a supplier, service provider or contractor of a Concern supply, service or works contract, they understand and agreed to abide by the terms of the Concern Code of Conduct and associated policies (Programme Participant Protection Policy, Child Safeguarding Policy and Anti-Trafficking in Persons Policy).

15.1) Environmental Standards – Service suppliers should as a minimum comply with all statutory and other legal requirements relating to environmental impacts of their business. Areas which should be considered are:
1. Waste Management. 
1. Packaging and Paper 
1. Conservation 
1. Energy Use 
1. Sustainability 

16) Rights of Concern Worldwide: Should the Service Provider fail to perform under the terms and conditions of the contract, including but not limited to failing to obtain export licenses or to make delivery of all or part of the goods by the agreed delivery date(s), the Client may, after giving reasonable notice to the Service Provider, exercise one or more of the following rights:
· Procure all or part of the service from an alternate source, in which event the Client may hold the Service Provider liable for additional costs incurred.
· Refuse to accept all or part of the goods.
· Terminate the contract.

16.1) The contract will be terminated in the event of corrupt, fraudulent, collusive and/or coercive practices and the European Community will be informed where such practices may affect their financial interests.

17) Rights of access for test purposes: Concern Worldwide is contractually obliged to facilitate certain donor’s direct access to Service Providers for test purposes.  This obligation is extended to all Concern Service Providers.  (ECHO Ref: FPA, Annex III)

18) No Agency: This order does not create a partnership between the Client and Service Provider or make one party the agent for the other for any purpose

19) ECHO Compliance: All Concern Suppliers must be compliant with supply, works and service contracts awarded within the framework of humanitarian actions financed by the European Union. (Ref: ECHO FPA, Annex III)



Section 4 – Quotation 
Bidders are invited to submit bids for a range of packages. Use additional pages if necessary. 

	Location
	Number of staff

	Concern Bentiu/Unity State
	165

	Concern Juba
	53

	Concern Nyamlel/NBeG
	166

	Concern Kajo Keji
	33



Please attach scope of cover and all related policy documents. Please include information on overseas referral/number of flights and general exclusion clauses. – Clearly Note package reference

Concern Worldwide 
	Scope of Medical Insurance Cover – Employee and dependents

	Area
	Cover (USD)
	Family Categories
	Premium Rate

	Inpatient Cover and Outpatient cover
	IP cover limit of $12,500 and OP cover Limit of $1500 per family
	M+0 x 23 families
	

	
	
	M+1 x 04 families
	

	
	
	M+2 x 12 families
	

	
	
	M+3 X 378 Families
	

	
	Tax:
	

	
	Total:
	



Section 5 – Inspections and Site Visit
Concern reserves the right to visit and inspect bidder’s operations as part of the bid evaluation process.           

Section 6– Concern Code of Conduct and Associated policies
Attached to the tender document is Concern code of conduct and associated policies that suppliers/service providers must abide with when awarded the contract.

I do hereby confirm that the information given above and correct to the best of my knowledge and that prices quoted are valid for one year


Name: .......................................................................


Signature: ................................................................


Date: ........................................................................


Official stamp
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